FH
Annual Report




CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record
of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature
of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries
in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is
publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue
paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly,
prospective investors should note that they need to have access
to the GEM website at http://www.hkgem.com in order to obtain
up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this
report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of
this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Core Healthcare
Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief, (1) the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2)
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement in this report misleading,; and (3) all opinions expressed in
this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and
are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEFR
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

On behalf the board of directors of Core Healthcare Investment Holdings
Ltd. (the "Board"”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “ Core Healthcare"”) for
the year ended on 30 June 2007 (the “Year”).

During the Year under review the Group’s new management team had
worked relentlessly and made strenuous effort to turn loss into profit —
a net profit of HK$8.4 million was accomplished for the Group. And it
had been the first best performing year since the Group's listing on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in 2004.

Although Hong Kong managed to sustain its economic growth with
robust performance, challenges loomed ahead for small and medium
enterprises. Labor cost was fueled by the tight skilled human resource
market while property rents continued to surge with the booming capital
market. The small and medium enterprises, facing competitions from
all facets, could not enjoy the benefits that a burgeoning economic
should contribute. Encountering these challenges, the Group has all
along been relentlessly making its best effort to earn the best profits -
to solidify its original business on one hand and to explore new source
of revenue on the other. Our investment business gained an
exceptionally good return for the Group during the Year.

The investment climate in Hong Kong's capital market began to improve
from its doldrums after the SARS outbreak succumbed. Leveraging on
this opportunity, the Group revisited its investment strategy. The US$1
million investment in US bonds was disposed of and reinvested in Hong
Kong equity stocks. Despite the volatility of Hong Kong's stock market,
the Group achieved a good result with an investment profit of
approximately HK$15.6 million. Based on the capital invested at the
year-end, investment return was approximately 1.5 times.

Core Healthcare's original cancer diagnosis testing service had been
encountering competitions from individual private hospitals and hence
its turnover had been negative impacted. With respect to the sale of
health food, the Group opened two retail shops during the Year.
Nevertheless, due to high operating cost, their development in the retail
sector turned out to be sluggish.

To maximize shareholders’ value the Company had cut down its
operating expenses — patent loyalty fees were stopped in a number of
regions and human resource was re-structured. As a result, total
expenses was reduced to HK$6.84 million by 36.7% comparing with
the previous financial year. And this was one of the contributing factor
to the Year's turning loss into profit.

The Group realized that for an enterprise to grow and strengthen it
must be equipped with a strong financial position and adequate cash
flow. Over the Year, the Board had endeavored to increase net asset
value and solidify its liquidity position. The Group's total assets increased
from the previous year's 29 million to 41 million of which more than
90% was current assets. Capitalizing on the buoyant global equity
markets that provided liquidity, the Group started to place its new shares
to the market. Approximately HK$50 million were secured upon
completion.

4

AABRRREIEELEERERAFERTS ([ES
C)MAREREARRREMB AR ([ARE®] 5 [#
B 1) HZE2007F6A30R L+ A ([HAN]) 22F%

BE—F AEERBHEERBENEE 2% £EE
BAE 2ERNIS4OBETZREFE AXNEEAR
2004F BRI ETAR RIBEHRH BN —F-

HATBBE—FEERSRYER B/ DEERE
RAFEMPEE - &5 TARABEE A N EIRT ISR RM Lk
HERBEEEAMSWRN L S8R/ ERFHH
BB A ANET BT A T B E RS IR 4 B o AN R
RERREZBNRR —TEABHERREZES 5
— 7 ETRIRFE A HRA KR B PR E XIS RIER

BTt z& AREBBEAMSRERGRIT REETHHE
Bt — R SEHARZRERE HERKEN 88
EMZEZBEESFRE BLESERREEESM S HH
BERMHARTRE EREENERGES RER
TH91,6608 BT UBAKRE —ARAZERHE KE
BEOHEMN .6

B R 2 REAE 2 R A BRI T S B I AL B B AR
FRXERI-EREXE-RERMEENEH SR
FRMETEER R EERAFREE LT Bk
B TR SOk

BTENBRRFMHEAZFE AaiGHBERY 8F
KNIBERFEFE RIES N2 EME 2 EF B8R 5%
ANBREB - RILHA 2 BT HES4BE L BT
RERA36.7%  LRAFEEBARNS —RE-

AEBMAFPFLEEMDEALR VBBEHENTKE N
LAERHARBES BE—FEER—ERIRIEAEE
CEAEFERBILESER SALEZAEEBRAF
FEHY2,9008 78 TTIE N E#14,10088 7T HP BB KA
MBEE-BERFESFMBERERFBH BB &
EEPREREREETREEE S TREEZRNERSE
& FHE#)5,0008 8 T



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHRE

In spite of successfully turning loss into profit in the Year, the Group
saw no improvement in its original business and health food retails.
Hence, we will continue our effort to seek for new directions and explore
new and related medical businesses. Going forward, the Group plans
to develop new businesses related to medicinal products, including
agency, wholesale and retail, and will focus on the PRC market.

On the cancer diagnosis testing front, the Group will continue to
maintain its original services but will significantly cut down the related
research and development expenses. After years' effort, the cancer
diagnosis products of the Group still cannot penetrate into the markets
of Europe, Japan and Australia. No breakthrough development is
expected in the foreseeable future. Therefore the patent registrations
of those related markets will be gradually withdrawn upon their maturity
in order to reduce the patent registration expenses.

The risk of running a retail business is looming high. Thus the Group
will reevaluate the future prospects of its health food retailing ventures
and plan accordingly.

Despite the US sub-prime mortgages woe that has loomed into credit
crunches plaguing major global financial markets and taken tolls on
almost every stock markets in the world. Hong Kong's stock markets
has demonstrated that it has a strong and solid base that can withstand
the blow. Hong Kong maintains robust economic growth and the market
is liquid, and is supported by strong earning performance of the
enterprise in general. The “through train” investment scheme
promulgated by the PRC central government, which allows residents
in China to directly invest in publicly listed Hong Kong stocks, further
boosted the market sentiment. Our management team includes
seasoned and excellent investment management professionals. It is
assured that they will continue to exploit their competitive edge for
earning a more ideal return for the shareholders.

Finally and on behalf of the Board | would like to extend my heartfelt
appreciation to the strenuous work of our staff force over the Year and
to the trust and support of our shareholders.

Lui ChiWah, Johnny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 September 2007
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group's turnover for the year ended 30 June 2007 amounted to
approximately HK$1,298,000, as compare with approximately
HK$1,368,000 for the year ended 30 June 2006.

Profit attributable to shareholders of approximately HK$8.40 million
resulted in an earning per share of 2.23 Hong Kong cents for the current
year, while a loss of HK$9.57 million was recorded for the prior year
with a basic loss per share of 2.55 HK cents.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$1.3 million for the
year ended 30 June 2007 reduced by approximately 5% comparing
with the previous financial year. The Group's nasopharyngeal carcinoma
diagnosis and testing service encountered fiercer yet fiercer
competition, affecting revenues from EBgene, EBeasy and EBcombo.
In addition, revenue generated from the “Hong Kong Hepatitis
Diagnostic Centre” that provides Fibroscan testing service resulted in
a small income only and thus did not contribute enough to boost the
Group's operating performance. However, the newly started health care
products retail business began to provide new stable source of revenue.
By the end of calendar year 2006, the Group'’s first retail store of health
food at the Hau Tak shopping centre of Tseung Kwan O was reporting
satisfactory progress until the fire in the adjacent Hau Tak Market
occurred in March this year. The store’s business went downturn since
then. Up to the end of this financial year, its business had not resumed
to normal. Our second health food retail chain store in Shatin was up
and running by the end of June.

Cost of sales in the year under review was only HK$1,088,000,
representing a decrease of 16.9%. The Group's gross profit for the year
was HK$210,000 with a gross profit margin of 16.2%. During the year,
the Group continued its endeavor to explore and develop cancer
diagnosis markets in Europe and Japan, but with a sluggish progress.
Under this circumstance and due to the costly maintenance of patent
registrations in those places, the Board finally decided to withdraw all
patent registrations there. As a result, only China and Australia remain
to be the countries where we are having patent registrations. During
the year the Group stopped its research on cancer diagnosis. This
coupled with the depreciation on our laboratories already provided in
the previous financial year had significantly reduced depreciation and
amortization expenses for the year under review, thus tremendously
trimming down the cost of sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEMRDNT

The Group's laboratory continued to secure the certification of ISO 9001
13485 last year. In addition, the health food retail store in Tseung Kwan
O also secured the certification of ISO 9001.

During the year, the Group once negotiated to acquire a health product
company in order to extend its business base. As the negotiation
concluded no agreement and was hence discontinued.

The Group turned loss into profit in the financial year. Majority of the
profit came from other income which increased by approximately
13.88 times to HK$16,417,000 that in turn was mainly contributed by
the gain on securities investment. The Group sold its US bonds in the
third quarter of calendar year 2006, and invested the fund liquidated in
the Hong Kong Stock Market and its derivatives. While Hang Seng Index
went up from 18,000 points to 21,000 points — an increase of 17% —
during the period, the return on investment gained during the same
period was approximately 1.5 times. For the year ended 30 June 2007,
profit on securities trading was HK$11.36 million with an unrealised
profit of HK$4.23 million.

During the previous financial year and pursuant to the agreement made
with the Chinese University of Hong Kong Foundation Limited (the
"University"), 4,067,796 shares of share option with an exercise price
of HK$0.295 per share were granted to the University. Hence, share
base payment amounted to HK$785,296 in the year under review.

Capitalizing on the booming stock market and the liquidity in the equity
market, the Group entered into placing agreements with an independent
placing agent in June 2007 to place its new shares for the first time in
the market, the placing was done separately in two times after this
financial year end. Both placings were fixed at HK$0.17 with the first
placing of 74,836,000 shares of new shares, representing pre-enlarged
issued share equity of approximately 19.56% and raising a net proceed
of HK$12 million. The second placing involved new shares of
229,552,000 shares, accounting total issued share equity which after
the first placement of 49.05%, raising a net proceed of HK$38 million.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

While we will continue our cancer diagnosis and health products sale
businesses despite the fierce competitions that we expect to encounter,
the Board will regularly evaluate their future prospects for the Group
so that adjustment can be made to our business development strategy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRE DM

We achieved good performance with respect to the Group's investment
management for the financial year under review. With China’s and Hong
Kong's sustaining economic boom, it is expected that we will be able
to continue with such an encouraging result in the foreseeable future.
The Chinese government's macro-economic control has gotten more
and more stringent to hopefully slow down the pace of the country’s
economic growth. This could however be only beneficial to the healthy
development of the market. Despite the global financial market may
continue to be impacted by the risk of sustaining credit crunch. It is
expected that the global economy will be able to maintain a mild growth.
Government financial officials of countries that have been affected by
the recent financial turmoil are expected to adopt policies that would
stabilize the market. As a result, the Board remains confident about
Hong Kong's stock market in the year to come.

In view of the Group's ideal fruition in its investment income, additional
investment will be made in the new financial year for investing in the
Hong Kong stock market. The investment will be weighted with shares
that invest in China and command high growth potential.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2007 the Group held cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$4,122,000 (2006: approximately HK$18,039,000). Net
current assets amounted to approximately HK$34,799,000 (2006:
approximately HK$25,442,000). Current ratio (defined as total current
assets divided by total current liabilities) was approximately 13.7 times
(2006: approximately 40.0 times).

The Group had no bank borrowing as at 30 June 2007 (2006: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM on 18 June 2004 (the
"Listing Date"”). There has been no change in the capital structure of
the Company since the Listing Date. As at 30 June 2007, total equity
attributable to shareholders was approximately HK$38,055,000 (2006:
approximately HK$27864,000).

Most of the trading transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As at 30 June 2007, the Group
had no significant exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT
As at 30 June 2007, the Group and the Company had no significant
capital commitment (2006: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

A breakdown of the number of staff of the Group by functions as at 30
June 2007 and 2006 is set out below:
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Management EIBE 2 2
Sales and marketing HERTSHE 3 3
Laboratory {bBa P 2 3
Administration and finance TR R E1 7% 3 3
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All the employees are stationed in Hong Kong.

An employee’s remuneration includes basic salary, year-end bonus and
other allowances. Employees are remunerated based on their respective
educational background, position and working experience. There are
annual performance appraisal for promotion and salary increase. In
addition, each employee enjoys mandatory provident fund, medical
allowance and other fringe benefit.

During the year under review, the Group did not grant any share option
to employees or directors.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2007, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities.
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BUSINESS OBJECTIVES AND ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS COMPARISON

REERHEERRBERNLE

The following is a comparison of actual business progress to the
business objectives as set out in the prospectus of the Company dated
8 June 2004 (the “Prospectus”).

Business objectives up to 31 December 2006 as set out in the
Prospectus:
BRERFBEE2006F12831HWEKBZ:

Strategic development

KHBR

Forming strategic alliances with biotechnology companies to carry out
research into new testing methodologies for detection of critical
illnesses. Companies in Hong Kong and the PRC will be the primary
target for such an alliance because exchange of information and
technologies would be easier

HAYRIE AR EK KR HEARERRVIIR T ZRFARE -
BB MM E R G RARB RN EEBIRAF RHALRE R
RIERBMER REWRE RHE

Research and product development

R R Em b

To continue laboratory and clinical testing of stem cell technology for
treating cancer patients and replacing damaged organs and tissues
FIRRRBEERARRBEERSET MAZNBARBEETILE NG
A

To continue laboratory and clinical testing of the study of the forms and
nature of protein for the diagnosis of diseases
Fis BRI EIEAZERRNE D ERMRRIEE T2 R ER KRR

Sales and marketing

HERTISBIER

To continue promoting the Group's testing services in the PRC, Australia
and Japan

A ABTE R B BUMNRN B 2N HE B AN S B A0 R SRR S

TRABEREBEREA QR HES200456 H8H H)H
PrEiz ([BRER]) s B RM L&

Actual business progress up to 31 December 2006:
BEZE2006F12831ANEBREKER:

The Group has continued to seek opportunities to
ally with leading researchers in the academic and
biotechnology industries, however, starting from
2007, due to high research costs, the Group is not
actively seeking for the opportunities of such alliance
REEETESRIESMR REY B ENHE DT
AR R ERAEERS S BA20075H %G WEE
BESREKBR 2 e

The Company continued focused on HBV DNA test,
HBeasy and EBV test, EBsens. No immediate plan
for other research as of this moment
ARRFEEEFRAFARSEREAHHBeasy &
EB/A & Al EBsens © 25 W R A v BN TH M T AR
El

The Company continued focused on HBV DNA test,
HBeasy and EBV test, EBsens. No immediate plan
for other research as of this moment
ARRFEEEFRAFARSEREAFHHBeasy &
EB/A & HIFEBsens © {25 W R A v BN TH M T AIF
E

Marketing efforts have been made in PRC, Australia
and Japan. However sluggish progress was noted.
Considering the cost effectiveness, the Company
ceased its promotion in Japan

ERHE RN B AEITHISERE T ERE-E
BRI AR S AR B4 IEE B AR HERE
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BUSINESS OBJECTIVES AND ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS COMPARISON

EBERREBREBERNER

On the Listing Date, the Company obtained net proceeds, after
deducting all relevant expenses, of approximately HK$32 million from
the new issue of shares by way of public offer and placing. The Group
has applied the net proceeds for the period from the Listing Date to 31

December 2006 as follows:

REMHE ARRHEAREENEERITHRESFE
(B2 EEEZE) 93,2008 8 t-m EtTHEE
200612 431 A ILHAf AL E D BFT1E IR FRaBE

AT A

Actual

(Approximately)

Planned =1

BE (F9%0)

HKS$ HK$

#ET BT

Patent expenditures BRI 4,300,000 1,263,000

Product marketing EmfEE 13,400,000 1,183,000

Compliance requirements BT 3,600,000 905,000
Research and development (including MERE (BEFE

salaries and material costs) KAMR ) 2,700,000 1,726,000

24,000,000 5,077,000
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BEEREERER AT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEENRSREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lui Chi Wah, Johnny, aged 47, is a prominent and seasoned
financial professional. He has been financial analyst for major brokerage
firms, and stock commentator and columnist for public media. With
more than fifteen years experience in Hong Kong's financial sector,
Mr. Lui has gained strong rapport with entrepreneurs and has developed
close ties with many enterprises, especially those in the medical and
healthcare industry in Hong Kong and China. Mr. Lui was appointed as
chairman, executive Director, chief executive officer and a member of
remuneration committee of the Company on 2 August 2006. He was
also appointed as compliance officer of the Company on 22 August
2006.

Mr.Wu Kai, aged 42, graduated from Department of Traditional Chinese
Material Media of Gui Yang College of Traditional Chinese Medicine in
Guizhou Province (BMN& &G EZFT 22 X) in 1985 and obtained
his bachelor’s degree in Medicine. Mr. Wu has over 15 years of sales
and marketing experience in the pharmaceutical field. He has also
worked in key management positions in pharmaceutical companies in
Guizhou. Mr. Wu is a member of FREIF B BB LVEHEZE® and
EMNEEGTEARBCAHEZEE. Mr. Wu was appointed as
executive Director on 22 August 2006.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lau Kam Shan, aged 52, has been engaged in the business of
retail clothing in the PRC and the export of fabric from the PRC to the
United States. Mr. Lau has extensive experience in textile business
and general trading and is currently a director of Yi Feng Enterprises
Limited. Mr. Lau was appointed as non-executive Director on 8 August
2002.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwok ShunTim, aged 32, graduated from Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology (bachelor of business administration), and
obtained his master degree from Hong Kong Polytechnic University
(China business studies). Mr. Kwok is chief financial officer of Tianjin
Tianlian Public Utilities Company Limited (stock code: 8290). He is also
a non-executive director of China Leason Investment Group Co., Ltd
(stock code: 8270). Mr. Kwok is member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants ("ACCA”) and Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Mr. Kwok is experienced in the field of
corporate finance, financial management and audit. Mr. Kwok was
appointed as independent non-executive Director, chairman and a
member of audit committee and a member of remuneration committee
of the Company on 13 September 2006.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEENRENEERE

Mr. Chan Po Kwong, aged 51, is a merchant for the past twenty years.
He has been engaging in real estates business in Hong Kong and
overseas. He has worked in key executive positions in different trades,
services including retail and wholesale of importing products for Hong
Kong, Asian countries and Mainland China. Mr. Chan is a director of
various companies with extensive experience in business restructuring,
corporate financing and investments. Mr. Chan was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 December 2004.

Mr. Lam Yan Wing, aged 56, graduated from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in business administration. Mr. Lam
is also a full member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. He is a
seasoned banker and an all-round financial veteran with more than 30
years experience in banking and investment. He is currently running
his own private company, Brilliance GC Limited, which provides
corporate and financial advisory services. Prior to setting up his own
company, Mr. Lam had held senior positions with Chase Manhattan
Bank, The Industrial Bank of Japan and Elec & Eltek. Mr. Lam was
appointed as independent non-executive Director and a member of audit
committee and a member of remuneration committee of the Company
on 30 January 2007

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Leung Wai Man is the financial controller, the company secretary
and the qualified accountant of the Company who is responsible for
the financial and accounting management and secretarial affairs of the
Group. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Leung worked for an
international accounting firm for over nine years. Ms. Leung graduated
from Macquarie University of Australia with a bachelor of degree in
accounting and finance. She is a member of HKICPA and CPA Australia.
Ms. Leung joined the Group in March 2007.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EREBRE

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Company endeavors in maintaining high standard of corporate
governance for the enhancement of shareholders’ value. The Company
has complied with the required code provisions set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules for the year ended 30 June 2007, except for the following
deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

This code stipulates that the role of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
Dr.Yeung Wah Hin, Alex had resigned on 2 August 2006, in replacement,
Mr. Lui Chi Wah, Johnny (“Mr. Lui") was appointed as chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company on 2 August 2006. The Board
considers that Mr. Lui's extensive experience in financial sector and
strong business network will definitely contribute to the development
and future growth of the Group. The Board also considers that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management of the Company. The balance of power
and authority is ensured by the participation of experienced and high
caliber members of the Board which meets regularly to discuss issues
affecting operations of the Company. The Board believes that this
structure is conductive to strong and consistent leadership, enabling
the Group to make and implement decisions promptly and efficiently.
The Board has full confidence in Mr. Lui and believes that his
appointment to the posts of chairman and chief executive officer is
beneficial to the business prospects of the Group. Nevertheless, the
Board will continually review the function of the Board and its
relationship with the management, especially the necessity and the
benefits of separating the roles of the chairman and chief executive
officer.

Code Provision A.4.4

This code stipulates that listed issuers should establish a nomination
committee with specific written terms of reference. The nomination
committee should, among others, (i) reviews the structure, size and
composition of the board and make recommendations to the board
regarding any proposed changes; (ii) identify individuals suitably qualified
to become board members; (iii) assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors; and (iv) make recommendations
to the board on matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors.
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The Company has not established a nomination committee. Instead,
the full Board is involved in the appointment of new Directors. The
Board will take into consideration criteria such as expertise, experience,
integrity and commitment when considering new Director appointment.
The Board will conduct in-depth assessment on the independence of
candidates for the post of independent non-executive Directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at 30 June 2007, the Board comprises two executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

The Board is responsible for determining the overall strategy; reviewing
and approving the work plan of the Group; and overseeing the corporate
governance of the Group. While the management of the Company is
responsible for proposing and implementing the work plan of the Group,
executing the day-to-day operation of the Group and undertaking any
further responsibility as delegated by the Board from time to time.

Board Meeting

The Company held five full board meeting in the financial year ended
30 June 2007 The Directors participated in person or through electronic
means of communication. The following is an attendance record of the
meetings by each Director:

Annual Report 2007 —ZZ -t F 4R

ARRWARRIRHZEEG RzMAEFTg2E2HEE
ENEw AR TEEErNEFRHEL —LnES &
B BE KR ENER BRI TR A BT (4 AT
BN IERITE R EREANE I

=8

EERAK

M2007F6A30H EEEHNNEBIEMEBNITES —
ZIWTEER = ABUIERITES

EReNEFEEEAEENBERE SHRIERET
fERt BT ERECEE AR R TR -MAR R ERENE
FRIERHEEATAEEN TS RBEAEZE
B AR AEEESRIROEMNEBRGE-

Exges
RAFERNARRECHAREBEESSH EFHY
FBEBEMEFBASALEELZEGH - T RABERE
FHH AL

Number of board
meeting held during
the Director’s

term of office Number of

Name of Director EEZEHABME meeting attended
EEHE EEEERNAH HESZBNRE
Executive Directors HITESE

Mr. Lui Chi Wah, Johnny PR 5 5
Mr. Wu Kai REEE 5 1
Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Lau Kam Shan 21k 5 5
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES

Mr. Chan Po Kwong BREE R SEA 5 5
Mr. Kwok Shun Tim SPAEIE A 5 5
Mr. Lam Yan Wing MRIRES SR 3
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement on 22 August 2006
and 2 November 2006 that the Company no longer complies with Rules
5.05 and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules since the resignation of Mr.
Chan Siu Wing, Raymond and Mr. Wong Kin Fung. Accordingly the
Company will seek the appropriate candidate to fill the vacancies as
soon as practicable and within three months after failing to meet the
requirements. With reference to the Company’s announcement dated
13 September 2006 and 30 January 2007 in replacement, Mr. Kwok
Shun Tim and Mr. Lam Yan Wing were appointed as independent non-
executive Directors on 13 September 2006 and 30 January 2007
respectively.

Term of appointment and re-election of Directors

There is no service contract between the executive Directors and the
Company and they have no fixed term of services with the Company.
The non-executive Director has entered into a service contract with
the Company with effect from the Listing Date of the Company on
GEM until the Company's annual general meeting in 2005. The service
agreement is continued thereafter until termination notice is serviced
by either parties. The independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a term of one to two years.

All Directors would retire from office by rotation and are subject to re-
election at annual general meeting once every three years.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules throughout the year. The Company has also made specific enquiry
to all Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with the required standard of dealing and its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established on 8 June 2006 with
specific terms of reference. The committee is mainly responsible for
making recommendation to the Board on policy and structure for all
remuneration of directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration. As at 30 June 2007, the committee
comprises two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwok
ShunTim, Mr. Chan Po Kwong and one executive Director, namely Mr.
Lui Chi Wah, Johnny.

SR QATR200658 A22A K11 A28 2 @d AR &
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200649 A13H 200741 A30BEZ T E R AIE L
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WITES AR QA RWE L RB A LI EARD B EE T
TR -ERMITESEHEARB EEAE THARAR
REIZER B B EZ AR BR20064 3 5 a0 A% R A F
RE B MFETBEERIE ST — @A H K
BRI BUIERTERTZARA—EMFo
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s annual report
and accounts, interim reports and quarterly reports and to provide advice
and comments thereon to the Board. The audit committee will also be
responsible for reviewing and supervising the Group's financial reporting
and internal control procedures.

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Kwok Shun Tim, Mr. Chan Po Kwong and Mr.
Lam Yan Wing. Mr. Kwok Shun Tim is the chairman of the committee
since his appointment on 13 September 2006. The committee has met
four times during year.

The audit committee members have reviewed the Group's audited
results for the year ended 30 June 2007

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The auditors, RSM Nelson Wheeler, provide statutory audit services to
the Group. For the year ended 30 June 2007 fee for statutory audit for
the Group amounts to HK$292,500.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2007

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The Company acts as an investment holding Company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group's operations for the year by business activities
is set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2007 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 30.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend and propose
that the profit for the year be retained.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 23 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s Articles
of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 76 of this annual
report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's shares listed on
GEM (2006: the Company repurchased 9,484,000 shares).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at
30 June 2007 comprised the share premium and accumulated losses
which in aggregate amounts to HK$21,576,180 (2006: HK$20,404,614).
Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is available for paying distributions or dividends
to shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following the
payment of distributions or dividends, the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance
with the Company'’s Articles of Association, dividends shall be payable
out of the profits or other reserves, including the share premium
account, of the Company.

19

Annual Report 2007 —ZZ -t F 4R

BE-HESBERKRH

EARFER NARHETANER RS ER B ERE
B HESBERIARRZ AR LMY (20065 : KA A
8#[219,484,0000%) °

AT ARSIk RE

7200746 A308 ARA A Al 9 R FEEBRIER G HE &
ZFHEKH£21,576,1807 7T (20064F 120,404,614 7T) ©
BRASESARE (BB AR BRI EE I #
DR LARR B 7K T 5 AR - ML BB <P A R B AR
T REESI MRS EEANQEE R B ERKBRE
FHEENITARBEINHZER - BERAQRZEHHA
Al BR B EE AR A FLA A sk Kb 8 (B IE R & ERR
IH) R fTe




Core Healthcare Investment Holdings Ltd ##& BB ZiG E1EI AR AR

Z

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERE

SHARE OPTIONS R

1. Share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme") was adopted 1. R ([HREE]) AR R ERZ KR
by the then shareholders of the Company on 20 April 2004. RF20045F4 A20 B ERAN - B AR BT &8 2 FHIE &
Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 24(a) to REIE R 7E24() ©

the financial statements.

Movements of share options granted to the Directors under RIEEERETE HE2007F6 A30H L FEHE
the Share Option Scheme for the year ended 30 June 2007 are RENZBFEBENAT:
as follows:

Number of underlying shares in respect of which share options were granted

EREBRESR 2EBRAHE
Exercised/

Date of Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding Exercise
Name of Director grant at 01/07/2006 Granted Lapsed at 30/06/2007 price

120065 BATR/ 20075

7818 B/ 6A308
BEps R AH i RATHE 2R BEI AT e
HK$
by
Dr. Yeung Wah Hin, Alex BEREL 20/06/2005 2,222,222 - 2,222,222 - 0.225
19/06/2006 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 - 0.105
Mr. Cheng Yan Tak, Angus Ronald BREEE 20/06/2005 69,7116 - 669,711 - 0.225
19/06/2006 500,000/ - 500,000 - 0.105
Mrs. Yeung Tsui Mai Ling, Margaret ~ 5%$E% o+ 20/06/2005 1,111,111l - 1,111,111 - 0.225
19/06/2006 500,000/ - 500,000 - 0.105
Mr. Cho Kam Luk Eokra 20/06/2005 1,111,111/ - 1,111, - 0.225
19/06/2006 500,000 - 500,000 - 0.105
Mr. Lau Kam Shan ek 20/06/2005 1,111,116 - - 17,111,111 0.225
19/06/2006 500,000/ - - 500,000 0.105
Dr. Ngan Man Wong, Matthew PANREE 20/06/2005 1,333,333 - 1,333,333 - 0.225
19/06/2006 455,348 - 455,342 - 0.105
Dr. Loh Kai Tsu, Kevin Pl g 20/06/2005 1,333,33304 - 1,333,333 - 0.225
Mr. Chan SiuWing, Raymond BkEEE 20/06/2005 1,333,333 - 1,333,333 - 0.225
19/06/2006 600,0000% - 600,000 - 0.105
Mr. Chan Po Kwong RErEE 19/06/2006 948,49304 - - 948,493 0.105

Total CH 15,229,100 - 12,669,496 2,559,604
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Notes: Mat:
(a) The share options are exercisable at any time for a period of (a) FE AR AE AT AR A B 5T = F BAR N el e

three years from the date of grant.

(b) The share options are exercisable at any time for a period of
ten years from the date of grant.

(c) The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately
before 20 June 2005 on which the options were granted was
HK$0.225.

(d) The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately
before 19 June 2006 on which the options were granted was
HK$0.105.

Movements of share options granted to eligible participants
other than Directors under the Share Option Scheme for the
year ended 30 June 2007 are as follows:

e
(b) B A AT RN A RS+ F IR R B
fEe

(c) 22200546 A20H (AR H A H)FTAR
Akt 2 T B /0.225% T o

(d) Z422006F6 B 198 (BARER L BE) ATA
AEIRG 2 W EAR0.1058 T

R AT 2|8 220076 A30R L FEH T
BERLEE (BEERIN NBERENEHFE
U

Number of underlying shares in respect of which share options were granted

Date of  Outstanding
grant at 01/07/2006

ERHBRESR 2 HBRNEE
Exercised/

Cancelled/  Outstanding Exercise

Granted Lapsed at 30/06/2007 price

120064 BT/ 20074
7818 B/ 6A30A
Rt A AT [B5:8 B HRITHE M
HK$
BT
Employees 8T 26/06/2006 4,700,000/ - 4,100,000 600,000 0.116
Other eligible participants HAEKRSEALT  26/06/2006 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 - 0.116
Notes: Bt
(a) The share options are exercisable at any time for a period of (a) BE G4 AT A I A BB AT+ R AR R AT R
ten years from the date of grant. 170
(b) The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately (b) 252200656 A26 B (BEIER H B H) AIA
before 26 June 2006 on which the options were granted was NERRAD 2 W (B A0.1155 e
HK$0.115.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into by the Company with
the Chinese University on 8 August 2002 relating to the grant
of a right of first refusal to the Company by the Chinese
University in respect of certain technology and inventions, as
amended and supplemented by agreements dated 31 October
2003 and 16 April 2004 (the “Right of First Refusal Agreement”),
share options would be granted to the Chinese University over
the period of the term of such agreements of four years
commencing from 18 June 2004. Details of the agreements
are set out in note 24(b) to the financial statements.
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Details of the movements in share options granted to Chinese University

during the year ended 30 June 2007 are set out as follows:

BEEREERER AT

REZE2007F6 A30H EFEEEE FHXAE 7 ERK
EEBHBLT:

Number of underlying shares in respect of which
share options were granted

EREEREZABRAEE
Exercise Exercised/
price Outstanding at Cancelled/ Outstanding at
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 01/07/2006 Granted Lapsed 30/06/2007
BiTR/

742006 Ba/  R200756A

R A TEHR SRTEE 7A1AMKTE 2R BA¥  30HMKTE
HK$
BT

28/06/2005 28/12/2005 - 27/06/2010 0.223 4,484,305 - - 4,484,305

26/06/2006 26/12/2006 - 25/06/2011 0.116 9,482,758 - - 9,482,758

22/06/2007 22/12/2007 - 21/06/2012 0.295 - 4,067,796 - 4,067,796

Total At 13,967,063 4,067,796 - 18,034,859

DIRECTORS 5=

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Director

Mr. Lui ChiWah, Johnny (appointed on 2 August 2006)

Mr. Wu Kai (appointed on 22 August 2006)
Dr. Yeung Wah Hin, Alex (resigned on 2 August 2006)
Mr. Cho Kam Luk (resigned on 2 August 2006)

Mrs. Yeung Tsui Mai Ling, Margaret (resigned on 2 August 2006)
Mr. Cheng Yan Tak, Angus Ronald (resigned on 22 August 2006)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Lau Kam Shan

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Po Kwong

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (appointed on 13 September 2006)

Mr. Lam Yan Wing (appointed on 30 January 2007)

Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond (resigned on 22 August 2006)

Mr. Wong Kin Fung (retired on 2 November 2006)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Wu Kai, Mr. Chan Po Kwong and Mr. Lam Yan Wing

will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Lau Kam Shan, the non-executive Director has entered into a service
contract with the Company with effect from the Listing Date of the
Company on GEM until the Company'’s annual general meeting in 2005.
These service agreements are continued thereafter until termination
notice is serviced by either parties.

Mr. Chan Po Kwong has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director for a term of two years expiring on 30 November
2006. The appointment is subject to retirement by rotation and other
related provisions as stipulated in the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim and Mr. Lam Yan Wing have been appointed as
independent non-executive Directors for a term of one year expiring on
13 September 2007 and 29 January 2008 respectively. The service
contract of Mr. Kwok Shun Tim was renewed for a term of one year
expiring on 13 September 2008. Their appointments are subject to
retirement by rotation and other related provisions as stipulated in the
Articles of Association of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, no Directors proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2007 the interests of the Directors and the chief
executives and their associates in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"), were as follows:

The Company
Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each:

ESRERITHRAERROREBRANE
=

7200746 A308 iREFEH LKA EEN ([FHREBERE
Bl]) 352 EBEERN AR RN ERMARBE ETA
RIZBRETEF R SHMRAESTA ([1EESFRI]) BiBRAIA
RANBRAEARAARSEE NS RITIA B M EH
BARARE REBHEBBHRN RABRMOERSTT:

P N/NE]
M{E0.01/B TTH AR (4T &

Number of Percentage of

issued ordinary the Company’s

Name of Directors Capacity shares held issued share
RN

e BT EBRITRAE

EEpNE 37 R EE BO
Mr. Lui Chi Wah, Johnny Beneficial owner 18,716,000 4.89%

BEELE EmlEE A

Saved as disclosed above and share options granted to the Directors
as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Share options” in this Report
of the Directors, none of the Directors, the chief executive of the
Company, nor their associates had any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 30 June 2007 as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO.

B EXFTHEE RSN AN ES SRS A (AR —BAT
WEEIN R2007F6 A30H ARG SEEMEBRIT
ANBHFEEREHE A T BN AR R E A B EE

B SRR P EARIBEES R EEHIE35214&
JEEFO LR P ) B SO A B0 A R B 2 B
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
At 30 June 2007, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that the

following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant intersts

or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company.

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each:

Annual Report 2007 —ZZ -t F 4R

FERR

REBZELFRNA=TH RARBRIEES LB
E3B6HATEFEZ T ERRECMBR ATRREAN
BARDAENAR AN AAEBED 2 BERRNIEE -

MNEREE.OVE T E BB M IFAE

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interests

FsRHEE SRREGEEE
Percentage of
Directly Through the Company's
beneficially Through  a controlled issued share
Name of shareholders Notes owned spouse  corporation Total capital
BART
B Fizc) ERIRA
BRER i3 EilA el FEHAR &it i)
Spring Biotech Limited Spring Biotech Limited 1 32,895,524 - - 32,895,524 8.60%
Town Health Bio-Medical Technology Limited ~ BEREZEANHEARAF 1 - - 32,895,524 32,895,524 8.60%
Town Health International Holdings Company ~ BEREBIRIZRAR AR

Limited (“Town Health”) (IEfel) 1&2 - - 32,895,524 32,895,524 8.60%
Broad Idea International Limited Broad Idea International Limited 2 - - 32,895,524 32,895,524 8.60%
Dr. Cho Kwai Chee EETEE - - 32,895,524 32,895,524 8.60%
Dr. Choi Chee Ming, Francis LEHEL - - 32,895,524 32,895,524 8.60%

Notes: Bt
1. Spring Biotech Limited is beneficially wholly owned by Town Health Bio- 1. Spring Biotech Limited fFEf#22 EA YR BR AT
Medical Technology Limited which in turn beneficially wholly owned by BEnrdBEe FREBZAYRIEER AR ARERE

Town Health. wEEWA

2. Town Health is a company whose shares listed on GEM. As at the date 2. ERA—FBHREIER TR AT - HRARERE F

of this report, Town Health is beneficially owned as to approximately
51.66% by Broad Idea International Limited and as to approximately
5.13% by Atlantis Investment Mangement Limited. Broad Idea
International Limited is beneficially owned as to 50.10% by Dr. Cho
Kwai Chee and as to 49.90% by Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming J.P. Mr. Cho
Kam Luk (the father of Dr. Cho Kwai Chee), an executive Director of the
Company who resigned on 2 August 2006, directly beneficially owns
0.03% of Town Health.

Other than as disclose above, the Company has not been notified of

any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital
of the Company as at 30 June 2007.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group'’s five largest customers
accounted for 35.10% of the total sales for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein accounted for 12.39% of the total
sales of the year. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for 95.52% of the total purchases for the year and purchases
to the largest supplier included therein accounted for 55.43 of the total
purchases of the year. During the year, none of the directors of the
Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the top five customers and
suppliers of the Group.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders or controlling
shareholders of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
have any interest in a business which competes or may compete with
the business of the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Saved as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief executive's
interests in shares and underlying shares” and the paragraph headed
"Share options” in this Report of the Directors and “Share options” in
note 24 to the financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF

was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s annual report
and accounts, interim reports and quarterly reports and to provide advice
and comments thereon to the Board. The audit committee will also be
responsible for reviewing and supervising the Group's financial reporting
and internal control procedures.
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The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Kwok Shun Tim, Mr. Chan Po Kwong and Mr.
Lam Yan Wing. Mr. Kwok Shun Tim is the chairman of the committee
since his appointment on 13 September 2006. The committee has met
four times during the year.

The audit committee has reviewed the Group’s audited results for the
year ended 30 June 2007.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on page 14 to page 17 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remmeration Committee on the basis of the merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remmeration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors, employees and other eligible participants, details of the
scheme is set out in note 24(a) to the financial statements.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Details of significant events occuring after the balance sheet date are
set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. RSM Nelson Wheeler as auditors of the
Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Lui Chi Wah, Johnny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 September 2007
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Core Healthcare Investment Holdings Ltd

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHERE

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Z B X & F B 17

Certified Public Accountants

TOTHE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CORE HEALTHCARE INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS PLASMAGENE BIOSCIENCE LIMITED)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Core
Healthcare Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on
pages 30 to 75, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
30 June 2007 and the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ABETHRE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June 2007 and of the
Group's results and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

13 September 2007
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Core Healthcare Investment Holdings Ltd #2588 548 B2 AR B R A &)

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mElRmR

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #,%200746 A30H (-5 &

2007 2006

Note HKS$ HK$

Hia #ET JETT

Turnover EER 6 1,297,939 1,368,404

Cost of sales SHER AR (1,087,647) (1,308,230)

Gross profit EF 210,292 60,174

Other income EUA 7 16,417,159 1,182,374

16,627,451 1,242,548

Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEH (137,676) (510,437)

Administration expenses TR E R (5,264,743) (4,737,887)

Other operating expenses Hfh 8% A (1,437,646) (5,564,684)

Profit/(Loss) before tax BREADE S, (E518) 9,787,386 (9,570,460)

Income tax expense FEBIRAS 9 (1,391,000) =
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to AAT R EERNFEE

equity holders of the Company A (E518) 10 8,396,386 (9,570,460)

Earnings/(Loss) per share gRaERN, (&)
— basic —HR 14 2.23 cents (2.55 cents)

— diluted —H#E 2.22 cents N/A




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEEREX

As at 30 June 2007 200746 A30H
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2007 2006
Note HKS$ HK$
k3 T BT
Non-current assets JERENEE
Intangible assets mEE 15 = =
Property, plant and equipment LER B 16 3,256,023 2,421,980
3,256,023 2,421,980
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 17 100,527 44,846
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E M EUERIA 18 18,051,965 612,568
Financial assets at fair value through KIS BRI AT EAR
profit or loss ZEREE 19 15,262,864 7,398,530
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTA 20 4,122,164 18,038,807
37,537,520 26,094,751
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMERNFIE 21 1,347,165 652,935
Current tax liabilities FERT AR BRRR 18 1,391,000 =
2,738,165 652,935
Net current assets mENE EFE 34,799,355 25,441,816
Net assets BEFE 38,055,378 27,863,796
Capital and reserves BN R
Share capital A& AN 23 3,825,920 3,735,920
Reserves s 34,229,458 24,127,876
Total equity MR 38,055,378 27,863,796
Approved by the Board of Directors on 13 September 2007 EE2MN2007F9A 130
Lui Chi Wah, Johnny Wu Kai
BEE SR
Director Director
EZE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

MRERDZEBHWMK

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #,%200746 A30H (-5 &

Reserves
i
Share Share Share options Accumulated Sub-total
capital premium reserve losses  of reserves Total
R ROEE BRERE R ER i #E
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
T T BT BT BT BT
Balance at 1 July 2005 12005%7 A1 A& 3,830,760 46,628,204 - (13,465,628) 33,162,576 36,993,336
Shares repurchase RipEEE (94,840)  (1,383,566) - - (1,383,566) (1,478,406)
Recognition of share-based R REE 2 H3
payments - - 1,919,326 - 1,919,326 1,919,326
Loss for the year rERER - - - (9,570,460) (9,570,460)  (9,570,460)
Balance at 30 June 2006 200656 4308 &
and 1 July 2006 20067 A1 R 3,735,920 45,244,638 1,919,326 (23,036,088) 24,127876 27,863,796
Issue of shares upon exercise TR BT 2 R D
of share options 90,000 919,900 - - 919,900 1,009,900
Transfer of reserve upon G P
exercise of share options - 788,450 (788,450) - - -
Transfer of reserve upon lapse RYRIRIE , Frib et
of share options - - (215,786) 215,786 - -
Recognition of share-based ERARD AR 2 3R
payments - - 785,296 - 785,296 785,296
Profit for the year KERRH - - - 8396336 8396386 8,396,386
Balance at 30 June 2007 R200766 A30R &% 3825920 46,952,988 1,700,386 (14,423,916) 34,229,458 38,055,378
Nature and purpose of reserves RENEERAD
(i) Share premium (i) B E

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account are distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they all due in the ordinary course of business.

(ii) Share options reserve (ii)
The Group has a share option scheme under which options to
subscribe for the Company's shares have been granted to certain
directors, employees, other eligible participants and Chinese
University as set out in note 24.

RIEFSHSARE (BER]) BOEERANES
AR IR T BB ER ERGE R IRA S B KR
ARARBRENERFEBEDFEDI 2 B

BRI

KSR 24 R 2 5 AR B A A — B R Bl BIR
Zat BB AR R WBREERTETES:
B HtbAERSEALRPXAE.



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #;Z200746 A30H (-5 &
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2007 2006
HKS$ HK$
E BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R&ZEHHRERE
Profit/(Loss) before tax BRBIATE R, (1) 9,787,386 (9,570,460)
Adjustments for: TR
Interest income F2UA (677,887) (1,061,081)
Dividend income from listed investments KELEMREER 2REIWA (85,383) =
Depreciation e 317,689 679,082
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, HEWE- -BE X
plant and equipment =t BB () 270,717 (108,000)
Amortisation of intangible assets ﬂﬂ/ﬁgﬁﬁﬁ - 459,757
Impairment losses of intangible assets mEAERERE - 3,158,397
Share-based payments expenses ARG AD B AR 2 (S5 & A 785,296 1,919,326
Fair value (gain)/loss of financial assets LEEREATEARZ
at fair value through profit or loss @ﬁEZ NTE (WEs) EiE (4,236,610) 332,459
Gain on disposal of financial assets at ﬁ%%ﬁé SERIEATFEARZ
fair value through profit or loss TR EE R (11,362,631) =
Write-off of inventories 7 &R 77,328 =
Write-off of property, plant and equipment Y5 WS R IR - 133,127
Operating loss before working capital changes “&3E%& & & BRI =18 (5,124,095) (4,057,393)
Increase in inventories FEEN (133,009) (11,332)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and B 5 kA YRR (3G m) R
other receivables (17,439,397) 189,328
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 R E M e FRIEIE AN 694,230 106,333
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBFTAIRE 358 (22,002,271) (3,773,064)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBHHRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  BEWE BE K& HE (1,422,449) (2,628,080)
Payments for licences and patents SR R B AR - (113,443)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BE KL EEHRIE
plant and equipment - 108,000
Purchases of financial assets at fair value BALBRERRATEARZ
through profit or loss SREERIR (51,650,514) =
Proceeds from disposals of financial assets HECBRERATEAREZ
at fair value through profit or loss SRBEMSHKIEA 59,385,421 =
Dividend received from listed investments BYIREKRE ETEEF 2R E 85,383 =
Interest received =R 677,887 1,061,081
Net cash from/(used) in investing activities SEGRENFTEL, () ReFE 7,075,728 (1,572,442)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ®EZBHRERE
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise 7T AIEATEETT 2 B9 TS RUE
of share options 1,009,900 =
Shares repurchase i 5 B (= - (1,478,406)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities BMEEEATES (B REFHE 1,009,900 (1,478,406)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRREEELBHDF
CASH EQUIVALENTS (13,916,643) (6,823,912)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FUNRERRSEELER
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 18,038,807 24,862,719
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRONRERASEELEH
AT END OF YEAR 4,122,164 18,038,807
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH RERASEELEHRDN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e MRITH 4,122,164 18,038,807
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR R EE
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For the year ended 30 June 2007 #,%200746 A30H (-5 &

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
("GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
"Corporate Information” of this annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations and
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2006, 1 May 2006 and 1 June 2006. The adoption of these new
and revised HKFRSs did not result in substantial changes to the
Group's accounting polices and amounts reported for the current
year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective. The application of these new
HKFRSs will not have material impact on the financial statements
of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investments which are carried at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgements in the process of applying the accounting policies.
The areas involving critical judgements and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P IE SRR RE

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #;Z200746 A30H (-5 &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.

(a)

(b)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 30 June. Subsidiaries are entities over which
the Group has control. Control is the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group has control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
represents the difference between the proceeds of the
sale and the Group's share of its net assets together
with any goodwill relating to the subsidiary which was
not previously charged or recognised in the consolidated
income statement and also any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
profits on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(1) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #,%200746 A30H (-5 &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates ruling on
the balance sheet date. Profits and losses
resulting from this translation policy are included
in the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary items,
such as equity instruments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, are

reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying

amount or recognised as a separate asset, as

appropriate, only when it is probable that future

economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured

reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed

in the income statement during the period in which they

are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #;Z200746 A30H (-5 &

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are as
follows:

Laboratory equipment 5 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
Office equipment, furniture

and fixtures 2'/> — 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are
available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in the income statement.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Lease payments (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are expensed
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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Core Healthcare Investment Holdings Ltd #& 8 28 2245 E 12 A% TR A &)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #,%200746 A30H (-5 &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Intangible assets

(i) Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
An internally generated intangible asset is
recognised only if all of the following conditions
are met:

- An asset is created that can be identified;

- It is probable that the asset created will
generate future economic benefit; and

- The development cost of the asset can
be measured reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are
measured initially at cost and are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives which generally do not exceed twenty years.
Where no internally generated intangible asset
can be recognised, development expenditure is
charged to the income statement in the period
in which it is incurred.

(ii) Patents and licences
Patents and licences are measured initially at
purchase cost and are amortised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of the
relevant testing services of 7 to 15 years.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

In previous years, cost of inventories was determined
using first-in, first-out basis. With the new operation of
the Group's retail business on 1 December 2006, cost
of inventories is to be determined using weighted
average method. Such change in accounting policy had
no material effect on how the results for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and
presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #;Z200746 A30H (-5 &

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g)

(h)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
either investments held for trading or designated as at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
These investments are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of these investments are recognised in the income
statement.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the allowance is the
difference between the receivables’ carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition. The amount of the allowance is
recognised in the income statement.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in the income statement when an
increase in the receivables’ recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction
that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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Core Healthcare Investment Holdings Ltd #& 8 28 2245 E 12 A% TR A &)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #,%200746 A30H (-5 &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

(k)

(n

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably.

Revenue from the sales of diagnostic testing services
is recognised when the services are rendered.

Revenue from the sales of diagnostic testing products
is recognised on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership which generally coincide with the time when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Sales of health food and pharmaceutical products are
recognised when goods are delivered and title has
passed.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the Group's right to receive payment has been
established.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #;Z200746 A30H (-5 &

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Annual Report 2007 —ZZ -t F 4R

3. FESHEEX @)

(m) Employee benefits (m) {EEER
(i) Employee leave entitlements (i) 1ESEZRE
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long BEEZHZFRERBRGERS
service leave are recognised when they accrue MME BRERT FRER E L4
to employees. A provision is made for the HHIHESRHREELEZF
estimated liability for annual leave and long B RREARGR 2 A8 E&ED
service leave as a result of services rendered by B
employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and EEZHRBRD EERINER
maternity leave are not recognised until the time Fr IR TR -
of leave.
(i) Pension obligations (ii) RINGTEIZ B

The Group contributes to defined contribution AEEREEZENEREIGE
retirement schemes which are available to all ARErEER TR -ANER RIES
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the % BEH VTR B B ER S
Group and employees are calculated as a S ZHELEFE - MEKER
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The R ABRAIRIRET Bl AN A A S E
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to the F & TR itk
income statement represents contributions
payable by the Group to the funds.

(n) Share-based payments (n) URGDAERZAR

REE—RIFE T HEEABITURAEE
B LA RR () AR ELHE 2 (3 AR H & B #Y
BRATAN AT EETE (TRIEHETS
RENBBIEM) - LABRAB B LAR (7

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments
to certain grantees. Equity-settled share-based payments
are measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value BRERZNFOELBEEEATE I
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share- NEAERNFBHNRIEANE BT &AL
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over HERERNEE I AIFTIS AN
the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of BT AT R e 8E -

shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect

of non market-based vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #,%200746 A30H (-5 &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for
using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited
to the income statement, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #;Z200746 A30H (-5 &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Related parties
A party is related to the Group if:

(i) directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the Group;
has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group; or has joint
control over the Group;

(ii) the party is an associate;
(iii) the party is a joint venture;

(iv) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or its parent;

(v) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

(q) Segment reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products and services
(business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group's internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting format
and geographical as the secondary reporting format.

Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
the segment. Unallocated costs mainly represent
corporate expenses. Segment assets consist primarily
of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
inventories and trade receivables. Segment liabilities
comprise operating liabilities and exclude items such as
tax liabilities.
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Core Healthcare Investment Holdings Ltd 5.2

SERWERBRARA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #,%200746 A30H (-5 &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(r)

Segment reporting (continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are
determined before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation
process, except to the extent that such intra-group
balances and transactions are between Group
enterprises within a single segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used for
more than one period.

Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets,
except investments, inventories and receivables, to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any
impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in the income statement,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #;Z200746 A30H (-5 &

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in the income statement,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the balance sheet date

Events after the balance sheet date that provide
additional information about the Group’s position at the
balance sheet date or those that indicate the going
concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the financial statements.
Events after the balance sheet date that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when material.
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Core Healthcare Investment Holdings Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PAIE SRR IR

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #,%200746 A30H (-5 &

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3 to the financial statements, management
has made estimates and assumptions concerning the future.

The estimates and assumptions that have significant impact on

changes in value of carrying amounts of the most significant
amounts of assets/liabilities are discussed below:

(a)

(b)

Licences, patents and development costs
Determining whether licences and patents and
development costs are impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount through future commercial
activity which requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the developed
services and products. Impairment losses may arise
when actual cash flows are less than expected.

Impairment losses of licences and patents and
development costs amounted to HK$1,156,672 and
HK$2,001,725 respectively have been charged to the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 30
June 2006.

Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of the share options granted to the
directors, employees and other eligible participants
determined at the date of grant of the respective share
options is expensed over the vesting period, with a
corresponding adjustment to the Group's share-based
payment reserve. In assessing the fair value of the share
options, the Black-Scholes option pricing model (the
"Black-Scholes Model"”) was used. The Black-Scholes
Model is one of the generally accepted methodologies
used to calculate the fair value of the share options. The
Black-Scholes Model requires the input of subjective
assumptions, including the expected dividend yield and
expected life of options. Any changes in these
assumptions can significantly affect the estimate of the
fair value of the share options.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P IE SRR RE

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #;Z200746 A30H (-5 &

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group's activities expose itself to different kinds of financial
risk. The management has been monitoring these risk exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely

and effective manner so as to mitigate or reduce such risks.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Currency risk

The Group has certain assets, liabilities and transactions
denominated in foreign currency and is exposed to
foreign currency risk. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to change in interest rates is
mainly attributable to its bank balances. Bank balances
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of counterparties failure to perform their
obligations as at 30 June 2007 in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated balance sheet.
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers.

Price risk

The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Therefore, the Group is exposed to debt security
price risk. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risk
profiles.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #,%200746 A30H (-5 &

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(e) Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group'’s financial assets as
reflected in the consolidated balance sheet approximate
their respective fair values.

(f) Liquidity risk
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

6. TURNOVER
The Group's turnover represents turnover arising on sales of
diagnostic testing services and products, and sales of health
food and pharmaceutical products. An analysis of the Group'’s
turnover for the year is as follows:

=

MERRER (&)

(e) AFE
REEEBEERBBRIMIRBENAER
BMEEMNRMELRESNATEME
;'E*o

(f "RBESER
AEEZHRREHRERRAREHR
MBESHE ARREGER B ARNE
HERRERDEST R IR EHE-

EXE

REE 2 SRR IRUDE R AR R AE O3
ERRBERREMNEEREE ZAKEF
BEAKE 2 EEBOIMT:

2007 2006
HK$ HK$
#ET BT
Sales of diagnostic testing services ZETAH RIS &
and products EmZHE 1,148,009 1,368,404
Sales of health food and pharmaceutical — {R#2E R &
products LAT o = 149,930 =

1,297,939 1,368,404
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #;Z200746 A30H (-5 &

7. OTHER INCOME 7. Hblr A
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
#Er BT
Interest income B A 677,887 1,061,081
Dividend income from listed investments KRB _EMREEB ZREWA 85,383 =
Fair value gain on financial assets at LEEERREATTEAR
fair value through profit or loss ZeBMEEAFEZ K 4,236,610 =
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HEEEREE A TE
fair value through profit or loss AR Z SREE 2 Was 11,362,631 =
Gain on disposal of property, HEE BE &
plant and equipment B 2 Wz - 108,000
Handling charges received BB FEE 3,990 12,650
Sundry income FERA 50,658 643
16,417,159 1,182,374
8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 8. EXKRiEDED

Business Segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised

into three operating segments:

E P

RARER RNEERBEB D R=KED A

Sales of diagnostic  The use of blood test and

testing services Fibroscan test in the diagnosis
of cancerous and certain liver
and other diseases.

Sales of health Retail business on sales of health
food and food and pharmaceutical
pharmaceutical

products

products was commenced in
December 2006. Accordingly
no information about this
business segment was
presented for the year ended
30 June 2006.

Research and
development

Research and development
relating to diagnosis of cancer
and certain other illnesses.
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Core Healthcare Investment Holdings Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #,%200746 A30H (-5 &

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(continued)

A —

BREREERERAT

8. ERRWEDE (&)

Business Segments (continued) EBDE (47)
Sales of
Sales of health
diagnosis food and Research
testing pharmaceutical and
services products  development Total
DERE REEMR
PRz SHE BRZ#E B &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Year ended 30 June 2007 #ZE2007F6H30H
TURNOVER =E G 1,148,009 149,930 - 1,297,939
RESULTS E4
Segment results DEBHELE (2,698,802) (322,796) (808,685)  (3,830,283)
Other income HAapg A 16,373,215
Unallocated corporate expenses ROMEEMAEZ (2,755,546)
Profit before tax B A58 B a7 9,787,386
Income tax expense FIS RS (1,391,000)
Profit for the year FEHF 8,396,386
As at 30 June 2007 #2007F6H30H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEPEE 23,021,812 392,216 1,359 23,415,387
Unallocated assets ANBLEE 17,378,156
Total assets BEE 40,793,543
LIABILITIES afE
Segment liabilities DEPEE 1,077,669 51,200 16,021 1,144,890
Unallocated liabilities RORBE 1,693,275
Total liabilities HwaE 2,738,165
OTHER INFORMATION Hi &
Capital expenditure BARTH 1,214,889 207,560 = 1,422,449
Depreciation of property, W BB K&
plant and equipment Rz ITE 286,980 30,709 = 317,689
Write-off of inventories EAE iR 70,878 6,450 - 77,328
Loss on disposal of property, LEME- -BE &
plant and equipment e E 270,717 = = 270,717
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For the year ended 30 June 2007 #;Z200746 A30H (-5 &

8.

Annual Report 2007 —ZZ -t F 4R

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 8. EBRED @)
(continued)
Business Segments (continued) XD ()
Sales of
diagnosis Research and
testing services development Total
PEDRIS
BR#% 2 $HE Wt ST B B 3 &t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Year ended 30 June 2006 #£2006F6 H30H
TURNOVER =20 1,368,404 - 1,368,404
RESULTS ES
Segment results DEBFEE (5,914,161) (4,384,921) (10,299,082)
Other income HAnlg A 1,061,081
Unallocated corporate RAOMEEFEZ
expenses (332,459)
Loss for the year FEEE (9,570,460)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #,%200746 A30H (-5 &

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(continued)

BEEREZERBRA

Al

8. ERRHMED &)

Business Segments (continued) XD (47)
Sales of
diagnosis Research and
testing services development Total
DEDRIE
BR#% 2 $HE Wt oe B BR3¢ Gl
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
As at 30 June 2006 #Z20069F6H30H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEPEE 20,834,321 283,880 21,118,201
Unallocated assets ROBLEE 7,398,530
Total assets HEE 28,516,731
LIABILITIES afE
Segment liabilities DEPBE 633,695 19,240 652,935
OTHER INFORMATION Hip &
Capital expenditure BARTH 2,655,016 86,507 2,741,523
Depreciation and e RN
amortisation 1,138,839 - 1,138,839
Impairment losses of EBREEZ
intangible assets PERIEEEES - 3,158,397 3,158,397
Fair value loss of financial KBRS RERATE
assets at fair value through AEZ SREE
profit or loss NIEEE - - 332,459
Geographical segments & 5 EB

The revenue and results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the years ended 30 June 2006 and 2007 are derived wholly
from customers located in one geographical market, namely
Hong Kong.

ANEEREE 20064 K 200746 308 IFREE
WA REE EERBEE2HHRAE—HED
BREE &S
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9. INCOMETAX EXPENSE 9. FEHMAX
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
#Er BT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax REARIIE — BB RS 1,391,000 =
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 17.5% on B E200766 A30H |E 2 BEFIS T AR AT
the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 30 June 2007. JERBLEAIE17.5% 2R R E - AEEEE

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the

2006476 430 A LIS AEAA] fERR B A1 - #LL H7R

year ended 30 June 2006 as the Group did not generate any REBFSTIERHE-
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during that year.
The income tax expense can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) ERF SRS AT EBES WS RTER, (8
before tax per the consolidated income statement as follows: 18) HERI R
2007 2006
HKS$ HK$
B BT
Profit/(Loss) before tax BB F S (E518) 9,787,386 (9,570,460)
Tax calculated at the tax rate of 17.5% BB E17 5% ERTIE
(2006: 17.5%) (2006: 17.5%) 1,712,790 (1,674,830)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TATEE TE FE AR A1) B S BEFN AR Y
in determining taxable profits X EE 176,434 483,784
Tax effect of income not taxable TS E JE AR A5 i 6| B P 7B R A5t Y
in determining taxable profits WA R B HS Ro 2 (129,989) (185,690)
Tax effect of temporary differences RERGREREARIETE
not recognised (105,184) 438,906
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not (& A RERHIEE B
previously recognised opinhis 7 (65,718)
Tax effect of loss not recognised AEREEZT B E 102,667 937,830
Underprovision in current year RERF DG (300,000) =
Income tax expense MEHFEXZ 1,391,000 =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #,%200746 A30H (-5 &

10.

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

Profit/(Loss) before tax has been arrived at after charging/

10.  BRBLATER (BR)
BBATER (B538) B (GHA) THIEA

(crediting):
2007 2006
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Amortisation of intangible assets EmREESH - 773,845
Less: Amounts capitalised as B EMMEBRERAN 2 &5
development costs - (314,088)
Amortisation included in other FTA R EE R 2
operating expenses - 459,757
Auditor's remuneration ZEET NS 292,500 175,000
Cost of inventories sold HEFERA 263,111 108,372
Depreciation e 317,689 679,082
Exchange losses ESTR=ES 88,412 8,171
Fair value (gain)/loss of financial assets at #&ABHRIZAFEAR 2 £/t
fair value through profit or loss BEATEZ W), EiE (4,236,610) 332,459
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HELERRIEATEARZ
fair value through profit or loss SRUEE 2 W (11,362,631) =
Impairment losses of intangible assets BEtAHMEEERT 2
included in other operating expenses EREERBEERX - 3,158,397
Operating leases in respect of KEHERS
Office premises WARE 257,909 183,300
Retail shop ZEE 119,840 =
Directors’ quarters EERE 136,000 816,000
Research and development expenditure REIEHH B TRARARN
other than amortisation, staff costs and RER 2R BERNE
share-based payment expenses EARAEE ST - 52,444
Staff costs SIKA
Directors’ emoluments including EEHERRESREE
directors’ quarters (note 11) (Kia11) 2,341,084 1,607,805
Other staff's retirement scheme HAh B T ZRIREFFT SIS
contributions 57,584 60,440
Other staff's salaries and wages HtETI2HERITE 1,353,355 1,330,746
Other staff's share-based payments EME T 2D AER 2
expenses NREA - 795,099
Other welfares H A2 FI 21,146 18,277
3,773,169 3,812,367
Share-based payment expenses TEFABIRRA Z LA
not included in staff costs f&fn RER 2 NRER 785,296 734,076
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BE R
plant and equipment K fFEE 270,717 =
Write-off of inventories included in B AR EFER A 2 FEMER
cost of inventories sold 77,328 -
Write-off of property, plant and equipment Bit AHMEEER 2 ME HBE
included in other operating expenses N & AR - 133,127
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #;Z200746 A30H (-5 &

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 11. EEM<
During the year ended 30 June 2007 and 2006, no emoluments REEPEZE 20064 & 200746 A30H IEREE
were paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to RNE 8 2 T EVERE A SKE E AR 528
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of SRR E IR R F (B o 6 A IR 2 5 AR {rl B
office. None of the directors has waived any emoluments during &o
the years.
Details of emoluments of individual executive, non-executive FARBIEAIT FEENTT RIB Y IR TE ERN S FE2
and independent non-executive directors are set out below: R
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and other scheme 2007
fees benefits contributions Total
Bz E =41 RIRGHE 20074
e REAMER ™ =5
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B B
For the year ended 30 June 2007 EZE2007F6H30HLFE
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Lui Chi Wah, Johnny (a) BEELE (a) - 1,971,371 27,500 1,998,871
Mr. Wu Kai (b) REGFKE (b) 120,000 - - 120,000
Dr. Yeung Wah Hin, Alex (c) HEEEE () - 194,000 2,000 196,000
Mr. Cheng Yan Tak, Angus Ronald (@)  BBEEEA (d) = = = -
Mr. Cho Kam Luk (c) BoRELE (o - - - -
Ms. Yeung Tsui Mai Ling, Margaret (c) #5%ERZ L () = = = -
120,000 2,165,371 29,500 2,314,871
Non-executive directors FHITES
Mr. Lau Kam Shan et - - - -
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
Mr. Chan Po Kwong PRE A - - - -
Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (h) BHENELE (h) = = = -
Mr. Lam Yan Wing (i) RIRER S A (i) = = - -
Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond (d) BRIKER LA (d) 25,500 - 713 26,213
Mr. Wong Kin Fung (g) HEELE (g) = - - -
25,500 - 713 26,213
145,500 2,165,371 30,213 2,341,084
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #,%200746 A30H (-5 &

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 11. EE#ME @
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors”  and other scheme Share-based 2006
fees benefits contributions  payments Total
Ex HeoRM  RiIGHE URORE 2006
e REMGER % EZAR A%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
For the year ended 30 June 2006 HZ2006F6A30HILFE
Executive directors HTES
Dr. Yeung Wah Hin, Alex (c) BEBBE - 1,176,000 12,000 66,453 1,254,453
Mr. Cheng Yan Tak, Angus Ronald (d) BRBLE (d) - - - 33,226 33,226
Mr. Cho Kam Luk (c) BEHELE (0 = - - 33,226 33,226
Ms. Yeung Tsui Mai Ling, Margaret (c) BHRERLL (o) = = = 33,226 33,226
- 1,176,000 12,000 166,131 1,354,131
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Lau Kam Shan AekE - - - 33,226 33,226

Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES

Dr. Ngan Man Wong, Matthew (e) BENEBE (o) - - - 43,356 43,355

Dr. Loh Kai Tsu, Kevin (f) SR (f) = = - - -

Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond (d) BOKEEAE (d) 28,242 - 1,412 57,129 86,783

Mr. Chan Po Kwong BRE &AL = = = 90,310 90,310

Mr. Wong Kin Fung (g) =EEEE (g = - - - -
28,242 - 1,412 190,794 220,448
28,242 1,176,000 13,412 390,151 1,607,805

Niies: HiaE:

) (@) #2006F8 A2 HZAE

(a) Appointed on 2 August 2006 . -

(b) Appointed on 22 August 2006 (6) &2006&8)% ZZE?E

( : () #20064F8 A2 HEHE

c) Resigned on 2 August 2006 9y 8 F22 B BHE

()  Resigned on 22 August 2006 (d) ﬁ;ZOOG SAZZIELS .

(e) Resigned on 22 March 2006 () 512006$3ﬁ225 %‘ﬂf =

(f) Resigned on 24 October 2005 (M 51200521 Og i Elfg

(9) Retired on 2 November 2006 @) 5;2006 R ZEL\ -

(h) Appointed on 13 September 2006 Eh) (200679 A13A &4

(i) Appointed on 30 January 2007 i R2007F1 AI0AEHE
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12.

13.

14.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group included two (2006:
one) executive directors of the Company, whose emoluments
are included in note 11 above. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2006: four) individuals are as follows:

12.
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EEMSE

AEB RN HEEHE S 2IERA AR BT
EE (2006 G :—7) - KBS SR AT 2 Fi8%11 ©
H#r=ummbie &8 (2006 4 :OLL) B
T

2007 2006

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Salaries and allowances e MoEEL 645,122 978,983
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET IR 26,900 43,725
Share-based payments AR BER 2 R ER - 287,385
672,022 1,310,093

The emoluments of the remaining three (2006: four) highest
paid individuals were within the following band:

Hip=fum= M2 B8 (2006 £ : MMAL) BRI
NRHAE:

Number of individuals
EEHAE

2007 2006

HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the
year (2006: Nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of
the Company of HK$8,396,386 (2006: loss of HK$9,570,460)
and on the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
375,883,507 (2006: 375,982,170) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 30 June 2007 is based on the profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$8,396,386 and the weighted
average number of 379,036,662 shares, being the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year,
adjusted for the effects on assumed exercise of share options.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
30 June 2006 has not been presented because the assumed
exercises of share options, which were outstanding during the
year, had anti-dilutive effects on the basic loss per share.
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13.

14.

FAREETEINTRZEERSNESEEER
HANASRE AR 80 REY K AR R 2 fhE

RE
ERFEARRRLES KL SRR (20065 :
&)

BRERN  (EHi8)

RNEEZBRERETRN (BE) HREARQF
B ER (5% 718,396,386 8 7T (2006 4 : 12
9,570,460/57T) K& B 21T AR A0 #E T 19 Bk Bk
375,883,507% (20064 :375,982,170/%) 7T & °

HZE2007F6A30H LLFE 2 BRESERF TR
EANA R IR R B 8,396,386 /8 L & B #1T
LBAR 2 InAEF A% 20379,036,662% 51 & - I 5t
BREITEZERE 2 S BIEL AR

EHE2006F6A30 HIEFEAN ARBRITERE
R (MzEE RN ATE) @HTFRERNEGE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2007 #,%200746 A30H (-5 &

15.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
intangible assets in 2006 and 2007, having regard to the market
conditions of the Group's services. These assets were used in
the Group's research and development segment. The review
led to the recognition of impairment losses of HK$2,001,725
for development costs and HK$1,156,672 for licences and
patents, which had been recognised in the prior year income
statement. The recoverable amount had been determined on
the basis of their value in use. In the opinion of the management,
no future cash inflow would be generated from the relevant
assets. Impairment losses had been fully provided for the year
ended 30 June 2006.

Details of the intangible assets of the Group at the balance
sheet date are set out below:

15.

Development

BLEE
AEER20064 2007 F iR E RGO TSR
ETHAEREREEER - LEEETARAE
EENHFREAFEER - ZFHEEBHEERA
ZRfEIE%2,001,7258 T RIS E R BFIE 2
RIEER1,166,6728 T (WWRIERMBEE R EFH
Uk R AR o AT Bl Uk & 58 B S AR IR AR B E 2R
BT EEERABBEAESTESEERSRA
ERREERREREE2006%6 308 IF 2 &
RNEBE Lo

AEBzEFEERNBEZAER L2 SFAE RN
T

Licences and

costs patents Total
HAER
BN ERRE &t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Cost DN
At 1 July 2005 720057 H1H 3,612,637 2,490,731 6,103,368
Additions BN 314,088 113,443 427,531
At 30 June 2006 and 7200656 A30H &
30 June 2007 200766 H30H 3,926,725 2,604,174 6,530,899
Accumulated amortisation and R EERREERX
impairment losses
At 1 July 2005 720057 H1H 1,505,000 1,093,657 2,598,657
Charge to consolidated Riza RPNk
income statement 420,000 39,757 459,757
Amount capitalised as REXRNER A
development costs - 314,088 314,088
420,000 353,845 773,845
Impairment losses MERK 2,001,725 1,156,672 3,158,397
At 30 June 2006 and 200656 A30H &
30 June 2007 200766 H30H 3,926,725 2,604,174 6,530,899
Carrying amount RESHE
At 30 June 2006 and 1200646 A30H &
30 June 2007 200746 A30H - - -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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16. MF¥ BERRE

Office
equipment,
Construction  Laboratory Leasehold fumiture Motor
in progress  equipment improvements  and fixtures vehicles Total
BAE
ERZ R HA
ERIE B4 %8  REEEE RE &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Cost XA
At 1 July 2005 1200556718 - 1,041,434 269,492 659,660 94,206 2,064,792
Additions 5 1,500,000 670,400 - 18,680 439,000 2,628,080
Disposals/Write-off e/ - - (269,492) (385,897) (94,206) (749,595)
At 30 June 2006 12006567308
and 1 July 2006 RIA1A 1,500,000 1,711,834 - 292,443 439,000 3,943,277
Additions 5 - 1,021,886 337,580 62,983 - 1,422,449
Disposals/White-off e/ - - - - (439,000)  (439,000)
At 30 June 2007 200756 A30A 1,500,000 2,733,720 337,580 355,426 - 4,926,726
Accumulated depreciation ZiERAERX
and impairment
At 1 July 2005 1200556718 - 742,000 127384 495,093 94,206 1,458,683
Charge for the year ERNER - 400,674 53,898 136,710 87800 679,082
Disposals/Write-off e/ - - (181,282) (340,980} (94,206) (616,468 )
At 30 June 2006 12006564308
and 1 July 2006 RIR1A - 1,142,674 - 290,823 87800 1,621,297
Charge for the year ERNER - 191,136 41,550 4,520 80,483 317,689
Disposals/White-off e/ HiE - - - - (168,283) (168,283 )
At 30 June 2007 200756 A30A - 1,333,810 41,550 295,343 - 1,670,703
Carrying amount RELE
At 30 June 2007 1200746 A30A 1,500,000 1,399,910 296,030 60,083 - 3,256,023
At 30 June 2006 12006564308 1,500,000 569,160 - 1,620 351,200 2,421,980

FERETREEAEZRN—Bleh RN T8
ABRTEETEAETHOR REETRE-

Construction in progress represents work in progress of designs
and renovation in respect of a molecular testing laboratory
workshop in a body-check centre which is still under
construction.
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17. INVENTORIES 17. RFE
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Pharmaceutical supplies BEftEn = 44,846
Health food and pharmaceutical products  {R{E 2 T [ 2%, 100,527 =
100,527 44,846
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EBZRkHMEWRKE
2007 2006
HKS$ HK$
ET BT
Trade receivables B 5 WA 160,678 144,829
Payment for shares of initial public SR A= N/NGE
offering application A& 15 2 538 7,267,395 =
Receivable arising from dealing in BE FMHESMEE
listed securities 2 FEW IR 10,329,660 =
Deposits i 141,858 330,335
Prepayments TERTRIR 130,938 115,695
Other receivables H b FEU R 21,436 21,709
18,051,965 612,568
The Group allows its customers with an average credit period AEER FETHFHRIEER A30 K83 EH
of 30 days. The aging analysis of trade receivables at the balance RN EE AR E 5 EUGRIE 2 BRER DT AT -
sheet date based on the invoice date is as follows:
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT BT
0 — 30 days 0£30K 78,805 104,883
31 - 60 days 31£260K 18,870 29,935
61 - 90 days 61ZE90K 19,100 9,281
> 90 days EBHEI0K 43,903 730

160,678 144,829
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIRVALUETHROUGH 19. KERERERATFEARZERMEE
PROFIT OR LOSS

2007 2006
HK$ HK$
#Er BT
Held for trading and at fair value HIEEEREATE
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong BB LT ZRAES 15,262,864 =
Unlisted debt securities (note) I EWES (Mat) - 7,398,530
15,262,864 7,398,530
Note: The above unlisted debt securities represented five-year treasury MiaE: Eu3E EEFRRAEFHEEBRERE F75
notes of the United States with interest rate of 4% per annum. K HA% - AT ERERESREE TRt ™S
Their fair values were determined based on the market price BREE-AEBEERAFHE Ltz EEEE
provided by the relevant financial institution. The Group had £
disposed of the treasury notes in the current year.
20. CASHAND BANK BALANCES 20. HREeRBITHEER
Cash and bank balances comprises cash held by the Group and Re RRTTESRPEASERE 2R URRT
bank balances that bear interest at prevailing market rates of HIH A—E A AR (20064 : — {8 A AR I
2.75% (2006: 4.98%) per annum and have original maturity of 122.75[E (2006%F :4.98[E) Z BT HFFE 5T

one month or less (2006: one month or less) BZIRITHE BRo
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21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. EZRHMEMRIE
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade payables =) ANE: ¢ 13,703 =
Other payables and accrued charges HEf e RIBERETER 1,333,462 652,709
Amount due to a related company FET A& R R ZRIE
(see note 28d) (Htat28(d) - 226
1,347,165 652,935
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance REEHEZRENRIBY BRSO T:
sheet date:
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT BT
0 — 30 days 0-30K 9,087 -
31 - 60 days 31 -60K 2,051 -
61 — 90 days 61 -90K 386 -
> 90 days ERIEBI0K 2,179 —
13,703 -
22. DEFERREDTAXATION 22, EEBIIE
At the balance sheet date, the major components of the AEERERANARBBEREHBEZRNH W0
unprovided deferred taxation of the Group are as follows: e
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Accelerated depreciation allowance IRTERR (180,108) (74,924)
Future benefits of tax losses MUIA R 2 AR KA 2 4,610,587 4,083,602
4,430,479 4,008,678

No deferred tax assets has been recognised as the generation

of future taxable profits against which the assets can be utilised
is uncertain. The tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

P TR 2R BE i RE R SR EE AR O JE AR B0 M| BE B HE 3K )
PAMREHIARE N BERZFIELEHIA
BE-HIRERM ER A
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23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. REAR
Number of Nominal
shares value
i gvig 4= HE
HK$
BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREEE0.01E TH L EAR
A%t
Authorised TERE
At 1 July 2005, 30 June 2006 7200547 A1H 20064
and 2007 200746 H30H 1,000,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid BETREZE
At 1 July 2005 20057818 383,076,000 3,830,760
Shares repurchase (note a) RADEEE (Kfata) (9,484,000) (94,840)
At 30 June 2006 and 1 July 2006 200664308 &781H 373,592,000 3,735,920
Exercise of share options (note b) TTERARE (MfaFb) 9,000,000 90,000
At 30 June 2007 7200746 530H 382,592,000 3,825,920
Notes: Bt
(a) During the year ended 30 June 2006, the Company repurchased (@) REE2006F6 A30B 1L FEA AR RTE
its own shares on GEM as follows: BIZERBRIERMD 2 FBEWAT:
Number of Price per share Aggregate
Month of shares BRER consideration
repurchase repurchased Highest Lowest paid
iE A 4 BERGEE 'S BIE AT zARE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
July 2005 20057 A1p 3,500,000 0.207 0.178 655,796
November 2005 2005F 11 A1 5,984,000 0.145 0.126 822,610
Total CEl 9,484,000 1,478,406
The above shares were cancelled upon repurchases and MR ERE R EE B AR A2 B
accordingly the issued share capital of the Company was TRABIRLER K 2 ZEER 94,8407
reduced by the par value of these shares which amounted to TLo—E SRR ERG RF 26 B30 RIE
HK$94,840. An aggregate amount of HK$1,383,566 &4 2 #2%81,383,666/8 7L B E D 5
representing the premium portion and brokerage expenses BERF T iH

payable on the repurchases was charged against the share
premium account.
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23.

24.

BEEREZERBRA

A —

Al

SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 23. BA& @)
(b) During the year ended 30 June 2007, the Company had (b) REE2007F6 A30R It 2 FER E1T
issued a total of 9,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 EREARRE £ AR A —2£%179,000,000
each upon the exercise of share options as follows: IR EmAR - S IREE0.01E T B T
Share Share
Number of capital premium
shares Amounts incr d incr d
Exercise price issued upon of share upon upon
per share exercise exercised exercise exercise
TERBETZ TEEFTIEIN  (THEERTIEM
FRITEE BRHEBE BIELE ZBRAE ZRGERE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
HK$0.105 0.105%7T 3,100,000 325,500 31,000 294,500
HK$0.116 0.116/87T 5,900,000 684,400 59,000 625,400
9,000,000 1,009,900 90,000 919,900

SHARE OPTIONS 24. R

(a) A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) (a) ARRFIRERF2004 54 A 20 HER A IEAL

was adopted by the shareholders of the Company on
20 April 2004 for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group's operations.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) may, at its
discretion, invite any employees, Directors, advisors,
consultants, licensors, distributors, suppliers, agents,
customers, joint venture partners, strategic partners and
services providers of and/or to any member of the Group
whom the Board considers in its sole discretion, to have
contributed to the Group from time to time (together
"Participants”) to take up options to subscribe for shares
of the Company (“Options”).

reEt 8l ([HBRE Rt E1]) - LUSUE) & 22
REEBEEBNKINEHERNE B
Sk

Exg([E58)) INBEREZSS
BEBRRETREAEEFTRANA
KB, AREEERKE R R ER
EE EF FHAA BB FUREA S
R e RIBA TR aBBH K
R R N RIS L IE R (Ahs [ 288 ) #%
XA REA R BB A E IR (TR
ADE
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24.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Options granted should be accepted within 14 days from
the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the Options, the
eligible person shall pay HK$1 to the Company by way
of consideration for the grant. The Options may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during the option period after
the Options has been granted by the Board. An option
period is a period to be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion and notified by the Board to each
eligible person as being the period during which any
Options may be exercised, such period to expire not later
than 10 years after the date of grant of the Options.

The subscription price will be determined by the Board
of the Company at its absolute discretion and shall be
no less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be
a business day; and (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted or to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme is 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the listing
date of the Company on GEM (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”). The Company may renew the Scheme Mandate
Limit at any time subject to prior shareholders of the
Company'’s approval.

No Participants shall be granted an option which, if
exercised in full, would result in such Participants
becoming entitled to subscribe for such number of
shares as, when aggregated with the total number of
shares already issued under all the options previously
granted to him or her which have been exercised, and,
issuable under all the outstanding options previously
granted to him or her which are for the time being
subsisting and unexercised, would exceed 1% of the
total number of shares in issue in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant of the Options.
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24.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

BREREERERAT

Unless early terminated in accordance with the terms

therein, the Share Option Scheme will remain valid and

effective for a period of 10 years commencing on 18

June 2004.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to

dividends or to vote at the shareholders’ meeting.

Details of the movements in share options granted under

the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 30 June

2007 are set out as follows:

24. ERE (&)

(a)

(&)

BRI IR B E R TURER L B
BB A% 5T 2200446 A 18H#E5H10

FHRAERFHE R

BRET I THAEAZTERE KR

RARGLEEZ#ES-

REE200746 A30H [ FE LM E
FTEIE R BESEFHBET:

Number of underlying shares in respect of which

share options were granted

ERHEREZAERO#E
Exercise  Outstanding Exercised/  Outstanding
price at Cancelled/ at
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 01/07/2006 Granted Lapsed 30/06/2007
1420065 BT/ 20075
7A1H B/ 6430H
BEAH TR BRITERE i RATE ERE B R AT
HK$
BT
Directors Ex
20/06/2005 20/06/2005 - 19/06/2008 0.225 6,225,266 - 5,114,155 1,111,111
20/06/2005 20/06/2005 - 19/06/2015 0.225 3,999,999 - 3,999,999 -
19/06/2006 19/06/2006 - 18/06/2009 0.105 3,000,000 - 2,500,000 500,000
19/06/2006 19/06/2006 - 18/06/2016 0.105 2,003,835 - 1,055,342 948,493
Employees Es
26/06/2006 26/06/2006 - 25/06/2016 0.116 4,700,000 - 4,100,000 600,000
Other eligible participants ~ Ht4EKSEAL
26/06/2006 26/06/2006 - 25/06/2016 0.116 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 -
Total CH 23,529,100 - 20,369,496 3,159,604
Weighted average METHTHEE (B)
exercise price (HKS) 0.1610 - 0.1629 0.1493




Annual Report 2007 —ZZ -t F 4R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #;Z200746 A30H (-5 &

24. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 24. HERE®)
(a) (continued) (a) (%)
Details of the movements in share options granted under REZE2006F6 A308 It FEIZERHE
the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 30 June FrEIE L BRESE BT

2006 are set out as follows:

Number of underlying shares in respect of which
share options were granted

EREBREZRRRGHE
Exercise  Outstanding Exercised/  Outstanding
price at Cancelled/ at
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 01/07/2005 Granted Lapsed 30/06/2006
120055 gfrfe/ 1420065
7A1R Bites/ 6A30R
RitiAH TSR BRTHEE W RATHE 2R 2N AT
HK$
BT
Directors Bz
20/06/2005 20/06/2005 - 19/06/2008 0.225 6,225,266 - - 6,225,266
20/06/2005 20/06/2005 - 19/06/2015 0.225 3,999,999 - - 3,999,999
19/06/2006 19/06/2006 - 18/06/2009 0.105 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
19/06/2006 19/06/2006 - 18/06/2016 0.105 - 2,003,835 - 2,003,835
Employees &8
26/06/2006 26/06/2006 - 25/06/2016 0.116 - 4,700,000 - 4,700,000
Other eligible participants ~ Htt4ERSRAL
26/06/2006 26/06/2006 - 25/06/2016 0.116 - 3,600,000 - 3,600,000
Total &t 10,225,265 13,303,835 - 23,529,100
Weighted average MEFTHEE (B)
exercise price (HK$) 0.2250 0.1120 - 0.1610
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24.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The options outstanding at the end of the year have a
weighted average remaining contractual life of
approximately 6.16 years (2006: approximately 6.82
years).

Total consideration received during the year ended 30
June 2006 from directors, employees and other eligible
participants for accepting the options granted amounted
to HK$17.

Under an agreement entered into between the Chinese
University and the Company on 8 August, 2002 relating
to the grant of a right of first refusal to the Company by
the Chinese University in respect of certain technology
and inventions, as amended and supplemented by
agreements dated 31 October, 2003 and 16 April, 2004
(the “Right of First Refusal Agreement”), the Company
will be offered a right of first refusal for the grant by the
Chinese University of a royalty-bearing exclusive licence
to use and commercially develop certain technologies
and inventions and other non-invasive diagnostic
technologies for detecting cancer and foetal diseases
developed by Professor Lo Yuk Ming, Dennis in future.

In return, the Company agreed to grant to the Chinese
University or such person as the Chinese University may
direct (including trustees of any funds) options to
subscribe for shares or to pay cash up to a maximum
amount of HK$4,600,000 over the period of the term of
such agreement of four years commencing from 18
June, 2004. Such grant of options will be granted to the
Chinese University at intervals of twelve months. Such
options are not intended to be granted under the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 20 April
2004.

BREREERERAT

24,

FBIRAE (o)

(a)

(%)

RARFE R W ARITE 2 BBIRHE 2 I
) 15 548 A 56,16 FF (2006 4F : 4
6.824F) °

MR2006F6 A30H LFER - HESE &
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ERIE KR BRI IEANS 2 B T

BRI ARERER THXAZHF
MARBEEHAL (BEFAESHZ
FEA) BEARHE - AT LAFR2004F6 A18H
STRURZ M MY A4F HAMR N RBE AR (5 sk 2 1+F
B iES 54,600,000 TR S %%
BREESAER T ZEARTHXK
BoZ ERRETEIREARARN2004
F4 208 FANH B AR ERT B o
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24. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

(continued)

Details of the movements in share options granted to
Chinese University during the year ended 30 June 2007

are set out as follows:
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24, B &)

(b)

(#)

REZE2007F6 A30B IEFEEREF
RXCRE Y BRIEE S BT

Number of underlying shares in respect of which
share options were granted

ERLBREZRERABA
Exercise  OQutstanding Exercised/  Outstanding
price at Cancelled/ at
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 01/07/2006 Granted Lapsed 30/06/2007
1420065 B/ #2007
7A1A Bt/ 6A30A
RitiAH AR BRTHEE e R AT BRI B e R AT
HK$
BT
28/06/2005 28/12/2005 - 27/06/2010 0.223 4,484,305 - - 4,484,305
26/06/2006 26/12/2006 - 25/06/2011 0.116 9,482,758 - - 9,482,758
22/06/2007 22/12/2007 - 21/06/2012 0.295 - 4,067,796 - 4,067,796
Total Bit 13,967,063 4,067,796 - 18,034,859
Weighted average NETEATEE (B)
exercise price (HKS) 0.1504 0.2950 - 0.1830

Details of the movements in share options granted to

Chinese University during the year ended 30 June 2006

are set out as follows:

REZE20065F6 530H IFFEEDRE T
NAB L ERESEBFENT:

Number of underlying shares in respect of which
share options were granted

ERHEREZAHEROHE
Exercise  Outstanding Exercised/  Outstanding
price at Cancelled/ at
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 01/07/2005 Granted Lapsed 30/06/2006
1420055 B/ 120065
7A1A B,/ 6430
RitiAH AR BRTHEE e R AT BRI B e R AT
HK$
BT
28/06/2005 28/12/2005 - 27/06/2010 0.223 4,484,305 - - 4,484,305
26/06/2006 26/12/2006 - 25/06/2011 0.116 - 9,482,758 - 9,482,758
Total &t 4,484,305 9,482,758 - 13,967,063
Weighted average NETATERE (B)
exercise price (HKS) 0.223 0.116 - 0.1504
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2007 #,%200746 A30H (-5 &

24. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 24.
(b) (continued)
The options outstanding at the end of the year have a
weighted average remaining contractual life of
approximately 3.97 years (2006: approximately 4.18
years).

For share options granted and vested before 1 July 2005
did not result in a charge to the income statement. When
the grantees chose to exercise the options, the nominal
amounts of share capital and share premium were
credited only to the extent of the option’s exercise price
receivable.

The fair value of share option of the 4,067,796 shares
granted to Chinese University during the year ended 30
June 2007 amounted to approximately HK$785,296
which was credited to share option reserves.

(c) The fair values of share option granted were determined
using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The significant
inputs into the model were as follows:

FBIRAE (o)

(b)

(c)

(%)
RARF E AR ARITE 2 IR 2 hniE F35
I EAE RER 4 53.974F (20064 : 494.18
F)o

ZER2005F7A1HAIRHRFB 2B
BRI AR AW ER TR AP T AT o EAGE N E 2
TR RS SE ABRAS MR (5 (B E (A
BERNEETHEEeZEERE B
1TEE-

REZE2007F6 A30B LFEE BFHX
KE 24,067,796 REREZ AT ES
785,296/ L WE AR ABRIEHEZE
7:70

ROBREN AT EARHFAEEER
AREE-ZEANTERARTR:

Share options grant date

BRERLAH

22/06/2007 19/06/2006 26/06/2006

2007%F6H22H 20065565198 2006%6526H

Share price at the grant date R BERRE (BoT)

Exercise price (HK$) 7 E (Bm)

Expected volatility based on historical ~ RIERENE LK IRHEED
volatility of share prices (%) TE AR 1R (%)

Expected annual dividend yield, RIRRE LR EHEE R TAH
based on historical dividend (%) EREE(%)

Expected life of option (years) RS AE 2 TR HA A3

HAIR (4F)

Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes rate 7% B E iME B
for corresponding estimated expected ~ HifE 2 BB E L ER
life indicated at the date of grant (%)  15RZK(%)

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 1,267
days. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management'’s best estimate, for the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considerations.

0.295 0.105 0.115
0.295 0.105 0.116
76.88 98.41 98.41
0 0 0
5 5.8 5.8

4.665 4.81-4.92 4.62-4.83

TEER IR AGT BB 51,267 B AR B IR D B HY
JE SR R R E - IRIR B IR B SR A b E iR
Fit R 2 A HARR A B R AR AR pE 8
FETERBIRITAEARERE
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For the year ended 30 June 2007 #;Z200746 A30H (-5 &

25.

26.

27.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% or relevant payroll
costs to the scheme, which contribution is matched by
employees.

The total cost charged to consolidated income statement of
HK$87797 (2006: HK$73,853) represents contributions payable
to the scheme by the Group during the year.

OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet dates, the Group had commitments for
future minimum leases payment under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

25.

26.
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RKEHE

AEELREERB TRE—BRHMEATESE
ZAt BN EERAKENEESHISH EES
XA RRES - AR ERZA B R H R A
BHERANE% - R ESAAEE SRR

FERAEES L87,797/8 7T (20064 : 73,853
L) EBY T BINER YEESA KSR
RE gk

REBEOARE
REMEH B ARERETTHHEOEEROA
R TFEIH B S 2 R AR E RS FORM T

2007 2006

HKS$ HK$

#ET BT

Within one year —FR 519,600 252,600
In the second to F_FHBREFRFIE

fifth years inclusive (BIEEEMX) 437,600 =

957,200 252,600

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises, retail shop and director’s quarter.
Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for a term ranging
from two to three years.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 30 June 2007, the Group had no significant capital
commitment. (2006: nil)
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27.

KEBHNFRADEAEEARERIEYE TE
BENEEFERN 2ES B RAZEEZHE
CERME=FHRER-

BAREE
MR2007F6 A30 A AREEN BEKE ARNFEE-
(20064 : £)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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28.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

(a)

The Group had no significant transactions with related
parties during the year or significant balances with them
at the end of the year.

The compensation to the Group's key management
personnel is disclosed in note 11 to the financial
statements.

In prior year sales of diagnostic testing services
amounted to HK$12,185 were made to Spring Biotech
Limited, a shareholder of the Company. The Group had
no trade receivables due from Spring Biotech Limited
as at 30 June 2006. Mr. Cho Kam Luk, an executive
Director (resigned on 2 August 2006), was interested in
the transactions as a beneficial shareholder of Spring
Biotech Limited. The maximum outstanding balance for
the year ended 30 June 2006 was HK$2,765.

Pursuant to sub-lease agreements dated 29 August 2003
and 26 July 2004, the Group sub-leased part of its office
premises to Wellchamp Capital Limited (“Wellchamp”)
for the period from 26 May 2003 to 12 February 2005 at
a monthly rental of HK$25,000. A renewal agreement
was entered into by the Company with Wellchamp on
25 April 2005 to extend sub-leasing period to 12 February
2007 at a monthly rental of HK$29,500 (other terms
remained the same). A net amount of HK$365,685 was
paid by Wellchamp to the Group as rental and utility
charges during the year ended 30 June 2006. Mr. Cheng
Yan Tak, Angus Ronald, an executive Director (resigned
on 22 August 2006), was interested in the transactions
as a shareholder of Wellchamp. The Group had other
payable of HK$226 due to Wellchamp as at 30 June 2006
which was unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand. The above sub-lease agreement was early
terminated in February 2007.
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28.

A —

BEALRZ K&K

(a)

(d)

FAREERBFEALTERAR S NF
RIVERIE A TE R

AEBMZEBEEASHFHBEZERTH
wEMIEET -

EF - MARFHIMRKRSpring Biotech
Limited S &2 BRI IRT 212,185
JL° 7200646 430 B » A B £ fE Uk
Spring Biotech Limitedt) & 5 BR 3K #11T
EEESMELAE (5R20065F8A2HEM)
/Spring Biotech Limited ) B 25 I 5 -
RS E S -H £2006F6 308 It
FENRERR=ESRF2,7658 7T

RAER 200348 A 29H K 200447 A 26 H
RS HRE AEESERAEN—
617> FWellchamp Capital Limited
(TWellchampl) + BAFR EF120034F5 H26 H
HEZE200542 A12H 1 AF25,000%
TLo AN A FEEWellchampR 200544 A 25
Al EEHH AL AHERLERS
200742 A 128 (EAb gz ERT~2) - A
729,500/ 7T - B £2006F6 A30H (L F
& WellchampRI 24~ & B 32 - A9 1 & J oK
B 5 5 365,685 8 Lo B BB LA (R
200648 A22HE(T) AWellchampRI#h
TEEFRBRR RNEERSHIEEER A
£ E 1200646 A30H A & Wellchamp
B E TR IB 522678 7T » It e~ 50 0E A4
TR EESNAES REEERRE L
R E R2007F2 AR EAR-
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29.

30.

EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE 29.

On 12 June 2007, the Company entered into two conditional
placing agreements with an independent placing agent for the
placing of up to 304,388,000 new shares to the independent

subscribers at the placing price of HK$0.17 per placing share.

The two placements were completed on 11 July 2007 and 6

September 2007 respectively.

Details of these two placements are disclosed in
announcements of the Company dated 12 June 2007, 18 July
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REHRER

R2007F6 R 128 ANARHE—ZBIUEENRIE
FEIMER KGR EHE MBYREAUTR
0.177% 7T 2 Bt & (EfC £304,388,000/5% 5 A% © 1t FR
BRED D RIR200747 8118 &20074F9 A6

HIEmke

BRALMIEREZFEERAAFN200746 A
128200747 A 188 K%2007F9R7H 2 A A

2007 and 7 September 2007. PR
BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 30. AATZEEAEX
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
B BT
Non-current assets JEmENEE
Investments in subsidiaries [ DYEEINGIE Fd 795,107 795,107
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSH B A RIFRIE 27,647,749 48,747
Financial assets at fair value through KB RIR AT EAR
profit or loss ZEMEE 7,268 7,398,530
Other receivables and prepayments o fth pE WkoE R RS 5RIE 50,000 387,988
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTA &R 493,088 17.670,533
28,198,105 25,505,798
Current liabilities mENaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEULH B A RIFRIA 1,527,018 =
Other payables and accrued charges E M pE kg E A 363,708 241,045
1,890,726 241,045
Net current assets MENEEFE 26,307,379 25,264,753
Net assets BEFE 27,102,486 26,059,860
Capital and reserves BEAR R
Share capital &N 3,825,920 3,735,920
Reserves (note) i (ffat) 23,276,566 22,323,940
Total equity BT 27,102,486 26,059,860
73
d
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30.

BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (continued)

300 AXPEZEBEREXR#

Note: B et
Reserve ]
Share Share options Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R A= E BRERE 2itEE &5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Balance at 1 July 2005 2005%7 A1 8 &8 46,628,204 = (1,893,729) 44,734,475
Shares repurchase &0 B el (1,383,566) - - (1,383,566)
Recognition of TERUARRD R EE R
share-based payments AL = 1,919,326 = 1,919,326
Loss for the year NEEEHIE - = (22,946,295) (22,946,295)
Balance at 30 June 2006 7200656 H30H
and 1 July 2006 200647 A1 H &% 45,244,638 1,919,326 (24,840,024) 22,323,940
Issue of shares upon exercise 1T ARRE P 21T
of share options Z & 919,900 = = 919,900
Transfer of reserve upon TERBRRE 2
exercise of share options s 788,450 (788,450) = =
Transfer of reserve upon lapse KRB 2 it
of share options B - (215,786) 215,786 =
Recognition of share-based TERARRD R EE R
payments FANES - 785,296 = 785,296
Loss for the year REFEE - - (752,570) (752,570)
Balance at 30 June 2007 7200746 B304 84 46,952,988 1,700,386 (25,376,808) 23,276,566
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31.

32.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 30 June

2007 are as follows:

Place of incorporation
and operation and

31.

Issued and fully
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FEMBQF

1K2007F6 A30B 2 AN AR E BB A RIFEL

™

Attributable

Company kind of legal entity paid share capital equity interest Principal activities
HMRIREE BRTR
NH B R R E R HRRA FEfL R AR 2R TEXK
Direct Indirect
HE e
China Universal Hong Kong, Limited Ordinary shares - 100% Investment in
Limited liability company HK$1 listed securities
FHARAA BB BREERQT Bl FHESZERE
1787
Core Healthcare Hong Kong, Limited Ordinary shares - 100% Sales of health
Products Limited liability company HK$2 food and
BRBEERARAR B ARETAT TR pharmaceutical
24T products
REEMNREmRZ
HE
Core Medical Technology Hong Kong, Limited Ordinary shares - 100% Diagnostic
Limited (formerly known liability company HK$12,000,000 testing services
as Plasmagene Limited) BB EREEAR TR and products,
BEEBEMBRERAR 12,000,000/ 7T and related
(AIfEEERARAR]) research and
development
P eI RIS &
Emm AR
sk
Hong Kong Hepatitis Hong Kong, Limited Ordinary shares - 100% Diagnostic

Diagnostic Centre

Limited
BB AZET L
BRAT

liability company

BE BREERT

HK$100
231
1007 7T

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, results in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of Directors on 13 September 2007.

75

testing services

relating to certain

liver diseases
REtETHRZ

D eI AR

ERIHEERAUAREREHNEEREAY
B AKEMBRAR-EERR JIHEMBHMEA
Al HAER B EHER BN IR

EMBARBMENFEREGEMNCETEBES

BOE R R

A ERRENR2007F9OA 13 EESSIER

AT

o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
PR HE

For the year ended 31st December 2007 #ZE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out below:

AEERNBE T AR RE LA R EERA BESHI
T

Year ended 30 June

HZ6H30HILLEE
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ET BT BT BT BT

RESULTS S

Turnover A 1,297,939 1,368,404 1,133,297 1,741,605 1,339,250

Profit/(Loss) for the year ANAERRER

attributable to equity holders EERFEE
of the Company wmAl (E5ia) 8,396,386  (9,570,460) (5,590,673) (4,234,304) (4,721,473)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE

Total assets BEE 40,793,543 28,516,731 37,539,938 44,973,281 31,537,078

Total liabilities BEE 2,738,165 652,935 546,602 16,275,868 27,440,569

Net assets BEFE 38,055,378 27,863,796 36,993,336  28,697413 4,096,509

Notes: Hiaz:

1. The results and assets and liabilities for the year ended 30 June 2003 1. X2 EE2003F6 A30A L FEMEEREESR
presented above have been extracted from the Company’s prospectus BEESRE B EA200466 ASAMAA T B SR
dated 8 June 2004 which were prepared on a combined basis as if the ZEERTRAHEERR MUAEERENSEHT
Group structure had been in existence throughout the year concerned ERA—BEFE UREAEER2002 F9 A20 BETE
to reflect the full year results and assets and liabilities of the Group for HAMFENEFEEREAERAE-
the year prior to the reorganisation of the Group on 20 September 2002.

2. The results and assets and liabilities for the years ended 30 June 2004, 2. X2 5E Z 20044 20054 20064 5200746 A30
2005, 2006 and 2007 presented above have been extracted from the AIERFENEEREERE BMEEE AMEER
consolidated income statement and consolidated balance sheet as set H) BT S TR

out in this annual report.







